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DACA27-03-R-0011, Vehicle/Pallet Facility, Fort Dix, New Jersey, is hereby amended as follows:

1.  The sign-in sheet and the minutes from the August 5, 2003 pre-proposal conference are attached.
2.  Section 01020:  Additional SOW items are added to this section.
3.  The updated geotechnical report is included. 
4.  Section 01320:  Additional information is added to this section.
5.  Section 15900:  Addtional information is added to this section.
6.  Five photos have been included for additional information to supplement Appendix 16.
7.  The Fort Dix Base gate location map is included in reference to the Base security requirements. 
8.  Section 00700:  Revise clause as indicated in this amendment. 
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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
         
SUMMARY OF CHANGES   
 
 

Pre-Proposal Conference Meeting Minutes 
Fort Dix Pallet Facility 
DACA27-03-R-0011 

5 August 2003 
 

1.  Kim McKnight opened the meeting with introductions of COE personnel and Fort Dix personnel.  
 
2.  Ms. McKnight suggested that prospective bidders also access the Louisville District website to see the 
information in DACA27-03-B-0009, Add/Alt Apron Taxiway Project at Fort Dix, NJ.  This project abuts the pallet 
facility project site.  Website:  http://ebs.lrl.usace.army.mil/ebs/AdvertisedSolicitations.asp 
 
3.  The project is 8A competitive, certified by the Small Business District Offices that service New York, New 
Jersey, Pennsylvania and Delaware.  This is not restricted to SBA Regions 2 and 3 as originally advertised. 
 
4.  Access Control Issues for Contractor Personnel, Fort Dix, NJ were addressed by Tom Kordell of Fort Dix, NJ.  
All contractors working on base are required to have completed Background Investigations (BI) done. These must 
be 5 year BIs, which can be done by a private agency or through the State Police.  Badges good for the life of the 
project will be issued upon review/approval of BI.  Contractors who are only on-site for a day or a week will be 
assigned escorts. Coordinate with the Military Police, and provide them a list of personnel expected to arrive at least 
24 hours in advance.  Background Investigations completed for McGuire AFB should be good for Fort Dix. 
 
5.  Military Police Access Control Issues for Vehicles was discussed by SGT Stewart.  Coordinate early with the 
MPs to ensure timely access of vehicles. 
Contractors are advised to commute with personally owned vehicles (POV) and to leave heavy equipment in place 
on the post to cut down on delays entering the post.  Average wait to get in or out is approximately 15 minutes.  (See 
the Fort Dix Gate location map, which has been included as a reference for Base security requirements). 
 
Heavy vehicles:  All heavy vehicles must use Checkpoint 9 gate.  Coordinate scheduled deliveries with the MPs as 
soon as possible. 
Cement and asphalt delivery will be given priority.  Contractors must get advance notice to the MPs of the firm 
delivery schedule.  With sufficient advance notice, and proper documentation for personnel and vehicles, access for 
asphalt/cement can usually be accomplished within 10 minutes. Concrete pour requires at least 24 hours notice 
minimum. Provide the MPs with a list of the providers for asphalt and concrete; to include company name, list of 
drivers, schedule, etc.    
 
Deliveries of loads of equipment such as steel:  Provide driver with a valid invoice identifying the base contractor’s 
name, and phone number (not a cell phone). 
 
Weekend Deliveries:  Not a good idea, not recommended.  If essential, weekend deliveries must be coordinated well 
in advance.  Only Checkpoint 1 is open. Vehicles over 6000 pounds cannot use this checkpoint. 
 
If a 24-hour paving must take place, coordinate with Mike Borovicka at (609) 562-2853 and/or Tom Trumbetas 609-
562-4313. 
 
Contractor personnel working on Fort Dix must have valid identification (Passport, Driver’s license, social security 
card, etc., issued by a state or federal agency).  Subcontractors must be advised that all personnel must have these 
documents. Social Security numbers must be valid.  Illegal labor will be reported to the Immigration authorities and 
will be prosecuted. 
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Drivers’ must possess current, valid driver’s license. Drivers making deliveries must have a valid point of contact on 
post, an address/location on Fort Dix for delivery, and a post phone number for that contact (not a cell phone 
number).  
 
 Vehicles must have current original registrations, (no photocopies), and proof of insurance. All vehicles must be 
able to pass roadside inspections, load safety inspections, etc. 

 
No knives, guns, weapons, explosives, drugs, etc. are to be transported onto Fort Dix, NJ. 
 
Threat conditions:  Should the base be upgraded to Threatcon Delta, the base will be closed to traffic unless it 
supports the soldiers and mission directly.   If the threat condition is raised to Threatcon Charlie, anticipate a two-
hour delay in getting on base.  
 
Military Police POC:  SGT Stewart (609) 562-4708/2624. 
Hours:  7 am – 3 pm Monday through Friday 
Sailor’s Pond Road 
Fort Dix, NJ 
 
6. Contractor Queries and other Technical Issues: 
 
Q:  Where are connections to existing utilities? To include where the water and sewer are to be connected? 
 
A:  The design/builder will need to verify utility locations.  All known above and underground utilities are shown on 
the drawings.  
 
Q:  The drawings do not show where the utility connections should be made.  Are the distances 20 feet? 30 Feet? 
Where does the sewer come in? The water main is where? Electrical connection is where? 
 
A:  We will clarify in the amendment all major utility locations and hookup locations (for sewer, water, telephone, 
gas, electrical).  For the purposes of bidding this RFP, assume all major utility connections at a point directly 
perpendicular to the building at the center of Texas Avenue. 
 
Q:  We need the sewer inverts as well, can we get them? 
 
A:  This will also be addressed as part of the amendment.  Only invert information that is in the RFP is available at 
this time.  Information may be provided by Fort Dix Public Works during the design phase. 
 
Q:  Electrical lines on the project, are they to be relocated by contractor or Fort Dix? 
 
A:  All primary electrical work shall be performed by New Jersey Power & Light (NJP&L) and shall be coordinated 
through Stephen Whitmore of Fort Dix DPW.   
 
The overhead three phase lines running north-south from Princeton Avenue and the affected lines along Texas 
Avenue shall be replaced with underground utilities.  All primary underground lines shall be installed in concrete 
encased duct.  Other utilities such as communications, cable television, etc. using the same poles shall also be 
relocated, with work coordinated with DPW. 
 
A new primary tap shall run underground from the existing/relocated primary lines to serve the new Pallet Facility.  
Appropriately sized primary conductors shall installed from the point of connection to the new pad-mounted 
transformer location. 
 
The work shall also include new underground feeds to the existing pump house and existing (other building) 
including appropriately sized pad-mounted transformers. 
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The contractor shall provide/install concrete pads for transformers in accordance with NJP&L specifications and 
shall provide and install secondary conductors into the buildings.  NJP&L shall provide and install transformers. 
 
Site lighting relocations/removals shall be performed by the contractor. 
 
Q:  Do we move the poles in the footprint of the building? 
 
A:  New Jersey Power & Light will move them. There will be no allowance for utilities in this project; this will not 
be a contract expense. (See the preceeding answer for more details). 
 
Q:  Water flow information? Size of water mains? 
 

• A:  Hydrant test was done two years ago on Texas Avenue.   Design/builder will be required to run a 
further test again and supply that information as part of the design submittal.  Proposal should be based 
upon the two-year old data.  This will be clarified in the amendment. 

 
Q:  What is the required pavement elevation? 
 
A:  Matchup of pavement is required where the adjacent Apron project will tie in to this project at the fence line. We 
will provide elevations that need to be matched.  It is approximately 39.15.  Reference should be made to DACA27-
03-B-0009, designed by Mason Hanger Group, Civil Sheet 600.  Grade at that location will depend on the designer 
of record’s final design. 
 
Q:  Is there a crane in the facility? 
 
A:  No. 
 
Q:  Furniture required?  Do we provide? 
 
A:  Contractor will provide design only for the furniture, and will NOT  buy any furniture. Second floor furniture 
design is an option.  The furniture package provided by the contractor will be used to procure separately through a 
separate contract. 
 
Q:  Anti-Terrorism Force Protection (AT/FP) requirement, what is it? Do we have to comply with the whole spec? 
Set backs, stand offs, barricades, bollards etc.? 
 
A:  Design for an uninhabited building within a controlled perimeter, following appropriate AT/FP criteria.  The 
design/build contractor must review and comply with the applicable ATFP criteria.  POV parking setback 
requirements are 30 feet as shown on the drawings. 
 
Q:  SOW references 70-ton tank? Where? It’s not on any drawing. 
 
A:  Lane 1 is a 70-ton lane as shown on Sheet 4 of the drawings.  The entire slab, the width of Lane 1, is intended to 
support a tank (Abrams M1 tank). 
 
Q:  Without wheel spaces, How do we design for this tank? 
 
A:  Use M1 tank specifications.   Three of the many references are:  
http://www.globalsecurity.org/military/systems/ground/m1-specs.htm 
http://www.clubi.ie/exalted/m1abrams.htm 
http://207.234.171.161/armor/armorspecs.htm 
 
Q:  What is the 20 ton wheeled vehicle? 
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A:  Paragraph 6-3.22 of Section 01020 references AASHTO HS 20-44.  This is to be the design criteria for a 20-ton 
vehicle. 
 
Q:  Structural section 13120 paragraph 2 under “Design Conditions” references a collateral load requirement of 24 
Kpa -- is this correct or a typo? 
 
A:  This should be 0.24Kpa. 
 
Q:  Tank. Still have a question about the width of the tank. What is it?  
 
A:  See the answers above. 
 
Q:  Staging Area? 
 
A:  Stay away from the wetlands. See site plan C200. Use the Quonset hut (K-Span building) for staging, (Bldg # 
4461) and perimeter area.  There is a requirement to tear down the existing motor pool fence and relocate it and the 
curb. 
 
We will put information and definition about the fence in the amendment.  Unless otherwise stated in the RFP, 
bidders shall assume responsibility for providing fence closure to the existing motor pool and new curb along the 
east side of the Pallet/Facility site. 
 
Power to the K-Span building may be interrupted due to construction of the adjacent Add/Alt Apron/Taxiway 
project.  
 
Q:  Clarify pallet options? Option 1? 60K loaders? 
 
A:  60 K refers to the largest pallet loader vehicle that will operate in the building.  These “K loader” vehicles 
themselves are not part of this contract.  Base bid includes a surface flush mounted pallet scale.  Option 1 is an in-
ground scale/lift that will lower into a pit below grade as pallet is being assembled, and then raises to allow the 
pallet to roll down toward the door.  The floor mounted roller conveyor is part of the base bid.  At the other end of 
the rollers is the other Option, a scissors lift which raises the pallet up to allow the K-Loader vehicle (Not in 
Contract) to pick up the pallet.  The Military Traffic Management Command (MTMC) Transportation Engineering 
Agency is a good reference for these types of equipment (Mike Atamanchuk, 757-599-1189).   
 
Q:  Capacity of the lift? 
 
A:  Only one pallet at a time, no more that 10,000 pounds. 
 
Q:  Option 1 and 3 are the same thing?  Sample we can see? 
 
A:  We have some photos available, there is one on McGuire AFB.  Sample photos are attached to this amendment, 
which are included as information to supplement Appendix 16.   
 
Q:  Telephone and data?  Bldg 5632 Texas Avenue…How far away is it?  
Underground? 
 
A:  Two blocks away, as stated in the specs. We will put location in the amendment. 
See paragraph 9-6 of Section 01020 and use distance for RFP planning purposes as 800 feet from the west edge of 
the pallet facility to the entry point of Building 5632, which is due west on Augusta Street, which is directly across 
Texas Avenue from the site. 
 
Q:  Will you enforce BACnet requirement re: HVAC? Reference page 248, item 11 Section 15900. 
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A:  Fort Dix does have an EMCS, which will require Ethernet communication.  It is typically a Honeywell system 
and will require one of the two protocols mentioned.  For further information, contact John Lamb at Fort Dix, (609) 
562-6687. 
 
7.  Section 00115 contains proposal submission requirements; what you must provide, and samples you can use.   
 
Section 00130 tells you how we will evaluate the submitted proposals. 
 
Our process includes a review of all technical proposals, then a consensus decision on a rating for each. Only after 
that will we open price.   We will select the contractor providing the best value for the government. 
 
Forms are behind the bid page for your use in asking further questions.  Questions must be submitted in writing. 
 
We intend to award by the end of September.  21 August at 4:30 PM is the deadline for submission of proposals. 
One original plus seven copies of the technical proposal, and one copy of the price proposal are to be submitted. 
 
Contractual amendment will be issued Thursday, 7 August 2003. 
Technical amendment will be issued Friday, 8 August 2003. 
 
 
 
SECTION 00700 - CONTRACT CLAUSES  
 
 
 
The following included by full text have been revised:  
         
52.225-13      RESTRICTIONS ON CERTAIN FOREIGN PURCHASES (JUN 2003) 
 
(a) The Contractor shall not acquire, for use in the performance of this contract, any supplies or services originating 
from sources within, or that were located in or transported from or through, countries whose products are banned 
from importation into the United States and its outlying areas under regulations of the Office of Foreign Assets 
Control, Department of the Treasury. Those countries are Cuba, Iran, Iraq, Libya, North Korea, Sudan, the territory 
of Afghanistan controlled by the Taliban, and Serbia (excluding the territory of Kosovo). 
 
(b) The Contractor shall not acquire for use in the performance of this contract any supplies or services from entities 
controlled by the government of Iraq. 
 
(c) The Contractor shall insert this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all subcontracts. 
 
(End of clause) 
 
 
 
Section 01020:  The following information has been added to this section. 
 
The design/builder will need to verify utility locations.  All known above and underground utilities are shown on the 
drawings.  
 
For the purpose of bidding this RFP, assume all major utility connections at a point directly perpendicular to the 
building at the center of Texas Avenue. 
 
All primary electrical work shall be performed by New Jersey Power & Light (NJP&L) and shall be coordinated 
through Stephen Whitmore of Fort Dix DPW.   
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The overhead three phase lines running north-south from Princeton Avenue and the affected lines along Texas 
Avenue shall be replaced with underground utilities.  All primary underground lines shall be installed in concrete 
encased duct.  Other utilities such as communications, cable television, etc. using the same poles shall also be 
relocated, with work coordinated with DPW. 
 
A new primary tap shall run underground from the existing/relocated primary lines to serve the new Pallet Facility.  
Appropriately sized primary conductors shall installed from the point of connection to the new pad-mounted 
transformer location. 
 
The work shall also include new underground feeds to the existing pump house and existing (other building) 
including appropriately sized pad-mounted transformers. 
 
The contractor shall provide/install concrete pads for transformers in accordance with NJP&L specifications and 
shall provide and install secondary conductors into the buildings.  NJP&L shall provide and install transformers. 
 
Site lighting relocations/removals shall be performed by the contractor. 
 
New Jersey Power & Light will move the poles in the footprint of the building. There will be no allowance for 
utilities in this project; this will not be a contract expense. (See the preceeding answer for more details). 
 
Water Flow Information:  It has been clarified that the hydrant test was done two years ago on Texas Avenue. 
Design/builder will be required to run a further test again and supply that information as part of the design submittal.  
Proposal should be based upon the two-year old data.   
 
Required pavement elevation:  The match up of pavement is required where the adjacent Apron project will tie in 
to this project at the fence line. We will provide elevations that need to be matched.  It is approximately 39.15.  
Reference should be made to DACA27-03-B-0009, designed by Mason Hanger Group, Civil Sheet 600.  Grade at 
that location will depend on the designer of record’s final design. 
 
 
 
Contractor will provide design only for the furniture, and will NOT  buy any furniture. Second floor furniture design 
is an option.  The furniture package provided by the contractor will be used to procure separately through a separate 
contract. 
 
 Anti-Terrorism Force Protection (AT/FP) requirement:  Design for an uninhabited building within a controlled 
perimeter, following appropriate AT/FP criteria.  The design/build contractor must review and comply with the 
applicable ATFP criteria.  POV parking setback requirements are 30 feet as shown on the drawings. 
 
Design criteria for 20-ton vehicle:  Paragraph 6-3.22 of Section 01020 references AASHTO HS 20-44.  This is to be 
the design criteria for a 20-ton vehicle. 
 
Staging Area information:  Stay away from the wetlands. See site plan C200. Use the Quonset hut (K-Span building) 
for staging, (Bldg # 4461) and perimeter area.  There is a requirement to tear down the existing motor pool fence and 
relocate it and the curb. 
 
Fence Information:  Unless otherwise stated in the RFP, bidders shall assume responsibility for providing fence 
closure to the existing motor pool and new curb along the east side of the Pallet/Facility site. 
 
Power to the K-Span building may be interrupted due to construction of the adjacent Add/Alt Apron/Taxiway 
project.  
  
As stated in the specifications, telephone and data are located two blocks away. 
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See paragraph 9-6 of Section 01020 and use distance for RFP planning purposes as 800 feet from the west edge of 
the pallet facility to the entry point of Building 5632, which is due west on Augusta Street, which is directly across 
Texas Avenue from the site. 
 
Section 13120:  The following information has been added to this section. 
 
Structural section 13120 paragraph 2 under “Design Conditions” is corrected to read “0.24Kpa”. 
 
Section 15900:  The following information has been added to this section. 
 
Section 15900 - Fort Dix has an EMCS, which will require Ethernet communication.  It is typically a Honeywell 
system and will require one of the two protocols mentioned.  For further information, contact John Lamb at Fort 
Dix, (609) 562-6687. 
 




























































































































































































